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1  MARK A. GILCHRIST 1 Grand Rapids, Michigan
2 Smith, Haughey, Rice & Roegge, P.C. 2 Monday, June 2, 2014
3 100 Monroe Center Street, N.W. 3 1:00pm.
4 Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503 4
5 (616) 774-8000 5 LESLIE C. MORANT,
&  mgilchrist@shrr.com 6 was thereupon called as a witness herein, and after
7 Appearing on behalf of Defendant A.J. Birkbeckj 7 having first been duly sworn to testify to the truth,
8 8 the whole truth and nothing but the truth, was
9  ALSO PRESENT: 9 examined and testified as follows:
10  A.J. Birkbeck 10 MR. GRIMM: Okay. For the record, this is
11 Michael Meiresonne i1 the deposition of Les Morant taken pursuant to notice
12 iz and pursuant to Michigan Court Rules.
13 13 EXAMINATION
14 14 BY MR. GRIMM:
15 15 Q. Mr. Morant, you know we're here on this suit
1o 16 Meiresonne versus you and Birkbeck, At the time that
17 17 you first were hired to have anything to do with the
18 18 underlying case, were you an associate or a partner
19 18 with Law Weathers?
20 20 A, Associate.
21 21 Q. When had you been brought into that firm?
22 22 A 2004.
23 23 Q. Was that vour first job after law school?
24 24 A No
25 25 Q. Okay. When were vou admitted to practice?

MAGNA®

{(Pages 2 to b)

LeGAat SERVICES




Page © Page 8
1 A, 1999, in Illinois. 1 A Tdidnot. Or af jeast ] don't recall talking to her.
2 Q. Okay. Let's see. Prior to deciding to take the case, i Tmight have, but [ don't recall it.
3 did you talk fo Suanme Watt Stay about her 3 Q. There wouldn't be any memos internally between you and
4 nvolvement? 4 her regarding what she had found?
5 A, Well, it wasn't my decision to take the case. 5 A, Huh-uh. No.
6 . Okay. Whose was it? & Q. Do yourecall seeing her memo or email to, I believe,
7 A. Ibelieve that Mike Roth came to me and asked me todgp = 7 Mr. Birkbeck regarding potential causes of action at
8 some research for Mr. Meiresonne and Mr. Birkbeck, wh 8 any time?
] were interested in exploring whether a claim existed. 9 A, Idon't recall offhand --
10 ). Okay. Who made the decision to take the case? 10 Q. Okay.
11 A. That I don't know. Tt was before my involvement. 1 11 A --whether there was an email of hers that T saw.
12 believe that Mr. Meiresonne was an active client of 1z There may have been. I don't recall.
12 Kevin Krauss, who was 2 partner in the firm. 13 Q. Okay. Allright. In this matter, you know - and I'm
14 Q. Do you know if Kevin Krauss had any decision-making .- 14 going to get into some of the details, but to let you
15 well, de you know if he had anything to do with i5 know, I'm going to be skipping around a little bit; so
16 accepting the case on behalf of your firm or you just 16 for that, I apologize in advance,
17 don't know? 17 Prior to this Meiresonne and 1QS versus
18 A Idon'tknow. oo 18 Terryn matter, how many appeals did you do before the
19 MR. STEC: Steve, just for clarification, 19 appeal in that case was filed?
20 when you say take the case, you mean take the request 20 A. Thave no idea, really. Tmean, I'd be speculating,
21 from a client to do the research? 21 but I certainly drafted a number of appeals or handled
22 MR. GRIMM: Well, we're going to get into 22 anumber of appeals prior to that.
23 that. 23 Q. Any idea how many; less than ten, more than ten?
24 MR. STEC: Okay. 24 A. Probably more than ten.
25 BY MR. GRIMM: 25 Q. InMichigan courts?
Page 7 Page 9
1 Q. Okay. So when the case came in to your firm, my L A, InMichigan and elsewhere.
2 understanding is that Suanne was the first one to do 2 (. Were you considered an appellate attorney at Law
3 research on it? 3 ‘Weathers?
4 MR. STEC: Same objection on the vagueness 4 A Law Weathers doesn't have a classification for --
5 of the question, because T -- 5 Q. Okay.
& MR. GRIMM: Okay. & A, --people who handle appeals. Pretty much evervone ift
7 MR. STEC: -- don't know what you mean by 7 the litigation. department handles appeals.
8 case, whether it was an assignment to look into a 8 Q. Did you discuss the appeal with -- the court of
g potential lawsuit or not. So if you could clarify it, 9 appeals appeal, did you discuss that with Steve
10 I would appreciate it. 10 Stapleton at any time prior to the filing of the
11 MR. GRIMM: Sure. 11 appeal?
12 BY MR GRIMM: 12 A, [don't recall whether I discussed that with Steve or
13 Q. Somy understanding is this. That Mr. Birkbeck 13 not. I don't know that I would have before the court
14 contacted your firm on behalf of Mr, Meiresonne todo | 14 of appeals appeal.
15 research into certain potential causes of action on 15 Q. Was he a more experienced appellate attorney than yoy
16 behalf of Mr. Metresonne; is that right? 16 or would you not agree with that?
17 A, You're asking me what Mr. Birkbeck did. Idon'tknow 17 A, Well, Steve has been practicing longer than I have by
18 the answer to-that. 1 know that I was asked to 18 maybe 10, 15 years, so I'm assuming that he is more
19 research whether claims existed. My understanding wag 1% experienced than me.
29 that Suanne Watt Stay had looked at that before I did. 20 Q. Okay. With regard to prior to filing the lawsuit in
21 Q. Allrght. Didyou-- okay. Go ahead. 21 the state court, who did you consult with at Law
22 A. Butthat's the extent of my knowledge of what happened 22 Weathers regarding the merits of the potential case?
23 prior to me coming on board. 23 A Ibelieve I discussed it with Mike Roth, who's the
24 Q. Didyou talk to Suanne about what she had found 24 head of the litigation department.
25 regarding potential causes of action? 25 Q. Dovourecall specifically any conversations with hire
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1 on that subject? 1 Q. Who else would have worked with vou at Law Weathers ¢u
2 A, Not with any specificity, no. 2 that?
3 Q. Would there be any memoranda memorialization of that 3 A, Well, I had, you know, some other lower associates
4 meeting or those meetings? 4 that were, you know, helping me out with the research
5 A Maybe notamemo. Tmean, there might have been an 5 on that, but that was really it. I mean, the — and,
6 emai} in there from me to Mike saying that these are 6 of course, vou know, A.J. and Mike were involved in
7 the potential claims that T researched. 7 the drafting of the -- and revisions lo the draft
8 Q. Was there - would there be an email from Mr. Roth & complaint. They provided the facts, mainly.
9 signing off on your research? 9 Q. They provided the facts?
10 A Well no, because, you know, we really -- we presented 10 A, Yeah
il it to Mike Meiresonne and A.J. Birkbeck. Youknow, we 11 Q. What material did you review before you prepared the
12 presenied that these are the possible claims if 1z complaint, if you recall?
13 you're — you know, and the pitfalis of those claims. 13 A, Well, I mean, there was extensive research done.
14 [t was for them to sign off on, not -- 14 Q. And what I'm really getting at is not the research.
15 Q. There was an email - 15 I'm talking about what documentation did you review
16 A, --not for me or Mike. 16 before filing the complaint?
17 Q. Yeah. There was an email -- I don't think I brought 17 A, Well, it was whatever A.J. provided through Mike -- or
18 it ---before suit was filed in which you emailed, T 18 Mike through A.I., I should say. They provided some
19 believe, A.J. Birkbeck and Mike Meiresonne in Which | 12 of the stuff from the New York lawsuit, I recall, and,
20 you kind of indicated the possible causes of action 20 you know, some of the -- because a lot of the facts, T
21 and you also indicated that simply being able fo bring Z1 think, were garnered from the complaints or the -- the
22 them is no guarantees of their success; is that what 22 litigation in that matter., There was a whole — I
23 you're kind of talking about? 23 think there was a whole file that A.J. provided.
24 A, Yes. 24 Q. Okay. You had written: -- and I'm going to show it to
25 Q. And in that, vou said that given that caveat that vou 25 you in a minufe. But there was an Auvgust 14, 2007
Page 11 Page 13
1 recommended filing a complaint? 1 email - I'm sorry. This was -- well, let's see here.
2 A Yeah Ifthey were interested in moving forward, Z This is a bit confusing. This is an email from you,
3 claims were -- these were good-faith claims that could 3 although it says from A.J. Birkbeck, and I think that
4 be brought, but the caveat was that, you know, these 4 was a different email. But it -- I'm going to show —
5 were ~ it was going to be an uphill battle. There 5 MR. GRIMM: What was the — 41; is that
& were certainly factual problems with what had happeneg & what we are onnow? I think 41,
7 in New York that were going to be a problem, and there; 7 MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION
8 were -- you know, there were some issues -- unresolved 3 DEPOSITION EXHIBIT 41
2 issues of Jaw that would make it difficuit to - to go 9 1:12 p.m.
10 forward. But, you know, given those caveats, that 10 BY MR. GRIMM:
11 was -~ that was my understanding that if they wanted 11 Q. Okay. So this was August -- I don't know what it was
1z to move forward - and because one of those issues wasi 12 because the first part is from AL Birkbeck, but I'm
13 statute of limitations, T said, you know, if -- if you 13 pretty sure this is from you. I} show it to you.
14 want to move forward on these, I recommend that youdp 14 Just take a look at it. Do I have that right, where
15 it sooner rather than later - 15 it starts Gentlemen, about - not even a fifih of the
16 Q. Right. 16 way down, it starts Gentlemen; that's from you, right?
17 A - because you have one of those issues. 17 A. Tiappears to be, although this is not the format in
18 Q. AndI think you also said in that email something - 18 which I recognize it.
19 you did mention that they may not survive summary 19 Q. Tunderstand. Well, here's my question on that. You
20 disposition given what [ think vou just mentioned? 20 see there's a series of numbers. And this is
21 A Correct. 21 information, I gather, you were seeking from A.J.
22 Q. Okay. Who took the lead on preparing the complaint in 22 Birkbeck and Mike --
23 the underlving case? 23 A. That's correct.
24 A, Ibelieve that we did. T believe that Law Weathers 24 Q. --Meiresonne?
25 did. Fdid 25 Let's go down the list. I don't have a
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Page 14 Page 16
1 copy in front of me, so just start with number 1, tell i summary disposifion, correct?
2 me what it is and then tell me did you get that 2 A Correct.
3 information. What is number 17 3 Q. Because you knew, like vou said, that would be the
4 A, Number ! is, Exactly what claims were raised against 4 800-pound gorilla we had to --
5 IQS in the New York action? 5 A, Right.
& Q. Did - okay. Why did you want that? 6 Q. --remove from the room?
7 A Well, collateral estoppel was an issue. So, you know, 7 A, Right.
8 if you're trying fo avord getling your complaint 8 Q. 8o thenthe complaint's filed, and then Thomas doesn]
9 dismissed out on collateral estoppel, you want to make 9 refile an answer to the complaint, correct? They file
10 sure that vou know whether the claims you're bringing | 10 a motion for summary disposition?
11 would have been covered or not covered under that. 11 A, Well it wasn't Thomas. H was --
12 Q. Would it be fair to say that going into this, 12 Q. Terryn, right.
13 collateral estoppel was your biggest issue? 13 A Yeah
14 A That was my biggest concern, and I think I said that 14 Q. There was an agreement, apparently -- well, at least
15 in the prior email that you discussed. 15 there was an agreement fo defend Terryn. Thomas was
16 Q. Okay. Didvou get that information from A.J. or Mike 16 defending Terryn, correct?
17 Meiresonne? 17 A, Yeah. Notas anamed party, but yes.
18 A, Yeuknow, it's hard for.me to say today, because, you | 18 Q. Right. And Terryn filed a motion for summary
19 know, this was seven or eight years ago, but I believe 19 disposition --
20 that 1 did. 20 A, Motion to dismiss on the pleadings --
21 Q. Okay. What's number 2 on there? 21 Q. Okay.
22 A. Number 2 is, Who were the people named as third-party 22 A. - correct.
23 defendants in that case and why? 23 Q. Allright. Andyou went to -- did you argue that
24 Q. Did you get that information, as far as you recall? 24 motion?
25 A Ibelieve that 1did. 25 A, Idid Against that motion, yes.
Page 15 Page 17
1 Q. Allright. Rather than going through ail of these, 1 Q. Right. And Mr. Birkbeck was in attendance at that
2 you asked for all of these things on there. 1 believe z hearing?
3 it ends with number 10; is that right? 3 A, Yes, he was, to my recollection.
4 A Correct. 4 Q. Was Mr. Meiresonne at the hearing, as far as you
5 Q. Didyou get the information you were seeking, as far 5 remember?
6 as you can recall? 6 A, Idon'trecall. He may have been
7 A, Letme read through them here. 7 Q. You just don't know?
8 Q. Okay. 8 A, Tjustdon'trecall. I mean, again, it's been a
9 A, lbelieve that I did. 9 number of vears.
10 Q. Okay. Did you -- part of this case, the underlying 10 Q. Would you agree that Judge Kolenda was hostile to yoy
11 case, | think you mentioned earlier, revolved arounda | 11 position?
1z decision and a ruling by Federal Judge Owen in the 12 MR. STEC: At the beginning?
13 federal court action in New York, cormect? 13 MR. GRIMM: Yes.
14 A, Um-hum. Yeah, that was the 800-pound gorilla in the; 14 THE WITNESS: You know, I don't --1 don't
15 TOO0T. 15 remember it that way.
16 Q. Right. That was the main issue you were -- that was | 16 MR. GRIMM: Okay.
17 the whole thing, whether collateral estoppel applied 17 THE WITNESS: Idon't know that I would say
18 to that finding, whether it was fully litigated -- 18 he was hostile to our position.
12 A Right 19 MR. GRIMM: Okay.
20 Q. --and all the rest of it? 20 THE WITNESS: Iwould say he might have
21 A, Yeah, and whether it precluded bringing an 21 favored the plaintiffs' position more than ours, but T
22 indemuification or contribution claim against Terryn 22 wouldn't say that he was hostile to our position, at
23 in this action. 23 least that's not my recollection of that hearing.
24 Q. AndIthink that was one of the main things you were i 24 MR. GRIMM: Okay. Okay.
25 referring to when you said this may not survive 25 THE WITNESS: And I might add with Judge
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1 Kolenda sometimes it's hard to know exactly what he's 1 to ask vou a couple of questions from that, okay?
2 thinking. Z A, Okay, ['veread the highlighied portion.
3  BY MR. GRIMM: 3 Q. Okay. If] could have that back. One of the -- this
4 Q. After the hearing, did you have a sense of where -- 4 is -~ T want you 1o assume, alse, that this was
5 and you kind of touched on it there. But after the 5 written: by Mr. Birkbeck and sent to Mr. Meiresonne,
& hearing, did you have a sense that the motion did not & okay?
7 go well, that Kolenda was likely to grant their 7 A Okay.
8 motion? 8 Q. After the Kolenda hearing but before the opinion camg
9 A Youknow, I don'trecall. I don't recall howI felt o out. And it says -- and if you want 1o read along,
10 afier that first motion, 10 that's fine, but otherwise -- it said that Kolenda was
11 Q. Youwere aware that Thomas filed a second -- the 11 hostile. And you've already said vou don't recall
lz original case was Thomas versus Meiresonne and iQS,] 12 whether or not you felf that way, correct?
13 the wnderlying New York case, right? 13 A Correcth
14 A Correct. 14 Q. Andthen it says, Assuming a negative ruling comes
15 Q. Andwere you aware that after the Terryn case was 15 this week, we need 1o discuss the merits and potential
16 filed, there was another Thomas action filed in New 16 cosls of appeal. Do you recall discussing with ALL
17 York? 17 " before the Kolenda opinion whether or not an appeal
18 A Was[ aware contemporaneous -- 18 would be likely?
19 Q. Yes. 19 A What do you mean by be likely?
20 A, - withits filing? 20 Q. Well, let me repbrase it. What I'm asking --
21 Q. Yes. 21 A Youmean whether a negative ruting would be likely?
22 A. No. 22 Q. WhatT'm asking -- well, yeah. Letme do it again.
23 Q. Were you aware — when did you first become aware of 23 Dié you discuss with -- after the hearing with Kolenda
24 its filing? 24 but before his opinrion came out, do you recall
25 A Tmean at some point after it was filed, I believe 25 discussing with Mr, Birkbeck whether or not a negativg
Page 19 Page 21
1 that Mr. Birkbeck informed me that there was now a 1 ruling would come -- was likely based on the hearing
2 secor] suit going on in New York involving Thomas and 2 and the pleadings?
3 108, 3 A, Youknow, I don't recadl today whether we had those
4 Q. Didyou have anything to do with that lifigation? 4 discussions.
5 A, Notto my recollection. 5 Q. Okay.
& Q. When vou walked out of Kolenda's court, he did not & A, But, again, if we did have ther, they're likely to be
7 issue an opinion right away? 7 in email form.
8 A, That's my recollection is that he did not issue an 8 Q. Okay.
) opinion right away. It took a number of weeks, I % A Ttendedto do every -- to do all of my communicationg
10 think. 10 on this matter through email.
11 Q. Didyouhave a sense of what he was going to do, whaf 11 Q. Before the -- you read this highlighted portion here,
1z the likely outcome was going to be? 12 and I'm going to ask you, read that last sentence -
13 A, Idon'trecall today having a sense for where things 13 I'm going to read it upside-down if I can. Is it fair
14 were going. But if T - if | had a sense for where 14 to say that the highlighted portion. -- in the
15 things were going, it would have been expressed in 15 highlighted portion, it's discussing a potential
16 emails between myself and in-house counsel. 16 appeal; is that right? Is that fair?
17 Q. TI'm going fo show you what was marked as Number--] 17 A Well, I didn't draft this, so I feel hesitant to
18 Exhibit Number 39 in the Birkbeck deposition. And 18 specuiate on it, what its meaning is. But with that
19 assume for me that this email was written after the 19 understanding, the first part of the paragraph says
20 hearing in front of Judge Kolenda but before his 20 assuming we appeal, and then I believe the rest of the
21 opinion, okay? 21 paragraph discusses the appeal.
22 A Okay. 22 Q. Right.
23 Q. Andl just want you to take a mimte and read the 23 A, This potential appeal.
24 highlighted part, and then I'm going to ask -- you 24 Q. Right.
25 know, not out foud, just read it, and then I'm going 25 A, Sothat would be my reading of this. But, again, I
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Page 22 Page 24
1 didn't drafi it, so I can't — 1 Kolenda's decision where he basically invites the
2 Q. Tunderstand. So the last sentence says, Uniike 2 appeal and answers issues of first impression in
3 Thomas versus IQS, there's virtually no chanee that we 3 Michigan and acknowledges that that's what he's doing]
4 would be ordered to pay the other side's attorney 4 And, you know, report back to -- to the client through
5 fees, paren, the need to do so there was statutory. 5 capable in-house counsel that the -- that there are
¢ Did you discuss the likelihood of potential -- a & issues here that are appealable if that's the decision
7 potential order to pay the other side's attorneys with 7 the client chooses 10 make.
8 Mir. Birkbeck sometime after the Kolenda opinion was - 8 Q. And you never gave any -- any -- you never quantified
5 or sometime after the argument in front of Kolenda but 9 the likelihood of success or failure?
10 before his opinion was issued? 10 A, NotthatIrecall. I--aslsaid earlier, I make it
11 A, Idon'trecall ever doing that. 11 a practice not 1o give percentages or do that kind of
12 Q. Is this a statement that you would have agreed to back! 12 thing.
13 then, Unlike Thomas versus 1QS, there's virtually no 13 Q. Did you ever discuss with Mr. Birkbeck the general
14 chance that we would be ordered to pay the other 14 numbers regarding the number of appeals that are
15 side's attorney fees? 15 successfill in Michigan?
16 MR. STEC: Well, I'm going to objecton a 16 A, No. Idon'trecall having that conversation.
17 foundation ground, first of all. There's no 17 Q. Didhe ever ask that of vou?
18 foundation that he understands what the issues were in | 18 A, Not that I recall.
18 the Thomas decision and the statutery issues that are 19 Q. Atthetime — and, apain, [ apologize for jumping
20 referenced therein. But other than that, go ahead. 20 around here. But at the time the lawsuit was filed
21 THE WITNESS: Imean, I can only answer 21 and prior to that time, given vour exposure to and
22 that generally, and I would say that -- I mean, I 22 interaction with Mr., Birkbeck particularly, did you
23 would pretty much never say that, because you can't 23 constder Mr. Meiresonne an experienced litigant or did
24 ever account for wlhat a judge or a jury might - 24 you have ne epinion one way or anothet?
25 might -- might do. I mean, you don't want to make 25 AL Well, to me, Mr. Meiresonne seemed -- you said
Page 23 Page 25
1 definitives -- I wouldn't make a definitive statement 1 Meiresonne?
z saying you're not ever going to get sanctioned, 2 Q. Yeah
3 because you never know what crazy judges or juries 3 A, Yeah, Mr. Meiresonne seemed to be experienced in
4 might do. 4 litigation. He had been involved in a lengthy and
5  BY MR. GRIMM: 5 canfankerous litigation in New York, and he had been
6 Q. Infact, you don't -- one of the reasons you don't do 6 involved through our firm with some prior litigations
7 that is because, potentially, it could mislead the 7 in Michigan. So I considered himtobe a
g client into making a decision that may not be based on 8 sophisticated litigant.
9 fact? 9 Q. Did you expect Mr. Meiresonne would refy on his
10 A, Yeah. Imean, without saying that that's what 10 advice -- on the advice of counsel regarding
11 happened in that paragraph, I -- yeah. I mean, [ 11 particularly whether to file the appeal?
1z don't give percentages of winning for the same reason | 12 A, Yeah, T guess s0. Yeah, | would say that I would ;
13 I don't say you'll never get sanctioned or you'll 13 expect that he would listen to his counsel. T don't :
14 never win or you'll never lose, because you just - 14 know that counsel was making the decision, but -- or ;
15 you just never know. Never say never. 15 giving advice rather than just saying whether issues
16 Q. Tellme -- so Kolenda's decision comes down, and them 16 were there that could be appealed, but - but, yeah, T
17 there are a lot of emails back and forth about whether 17 would expect that he would have listened to counsel i
18 or not there's going 1o be an appeal, correct? 18 helping form his opinion.
192 A Correct. 15 Q. Do you think it is within the standard of care for an
20 Q. What was your role in making the decision whether or; 20 attorney to say to his client that there is virtually
21 not to appeal? 21 no chance that you will be ordered to pay the other
22 A, Well, I don't know that I played any role in making 22 side's attorney fees?
23 the decision. I think my role was to assess whether 23 MR. STEC: Objection.
24 there were claims that could be appealed, and I 24 THE WITNESS: Yeah, T don't feel that I'm
25 believe that we did that. I think we Jooked at 25 qualified to opine on that.
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Page 28

1 BY MR GRIMM: 1 that's fine. But from what vou recall, what did
2 Q. Well, why not? You're an attorney, right? 2z Mr. Birkbeck tell you at the outset was the reason
3 A Well [ am an attorney. I mean, I can answer for 3 that Mr. Meiresonne wanted to file a case against
4 myself. Ican't say whether it's within the standard 4 Terryn?
5 of care for all attomeys to ever say that, but it's 5 A My recollection is that - my recollection is that
6 not something I would personaily do. & Mr. Birkbeck told me that Mr. Meiresorme had been
7 Q. What do you consider the standard of care in that 7 defrauded by Mr. Terryn, that Mr. Terryn had lied in
8 regard to be? 8 bringing his whistleblowing claim against IQS in the
9 A Well, I don't know. That's -- maybe that's why we 9 New York action, that he had copied those materials on
10 need — you know, that's for an expert to decide. 10 his own, and cost IQS and -- and -- and
11 Q. Well, so you -- you don't know what the standard of | 11 Mr. Meiresonne, you know, several million dollars as
12 care is for an atforney with regard to making a 1z a -- as a result of his actions, and that was the
13 definitive statement that there's virtually no chance 13 basis for wanting to bring the lawsuit in Michigan.
14 that you will be ordered to pay the other side's 14 Q. Didyou-- were you of the opinion that the Terryn —-
15 attorney fees? You don't know what the standard of 15 from your standpoint. I don't want you to speculate
16 care 15 in that regard? . . 16 as to Birkbeck. But from vour position in -- in
17 A, Idon't know that I wouldn't deit. Idon't know that 17 filing the complaint, was it your understanding that
18 there aren't any circumstances under which it would bé 18 the Terryn action was brought solely as an effort by
19 appropriate. 19 108 to mitigate damages in the IQS versus Miller
20 Q. Well, what about the circumstances in this particular { 20 action? And if you want, I can back up and kind of
21 case, do you think that was within the standard of 21 lay a foundation for what the Miller action was,
22 care to make that statement given the facts of this 22 unless you know.
23 case? 23 A, Yeah, I--you know, why don't you backtrack, becausg
24 A, Imean, I would not have said it. 24 I don't recall specifically.
25 Q. Igotthat My question is, though, because vou — 25 Q. Allright. My understanding was Miller was the
Page 27 Page 29
1 vou said depends on the case. What about this 1 attorney in the underlying federal case, Thomas I,
2 particular case, given Judge Owen's ruling, given all 2 right?
3 the other caveats that you issued before - to your 3 A Right
4 credit, right? 4 Q. And there was a claim, IQS versus Miller, as a result
5 A, Right 5 of the imposition of those sanctions and the
& Q. --doyou think that that was within the standard oft 6 settlernent for the 2-1/2 million.
7 care to make a definitive statement like that? 7 A Okay.
8 A, Well, T mean, it's just opinion, but -- but, no, I 8 Q. Sohaving laid that, my question is, was it your
e would not have considered that o be within what T g understanding, ever, that the Terryn action was
10 thought to be the standard of care to say that. 10 brought solely as an effort by IQS to mitigate damages
11 Q. Okay. Did Mr. -- and I know this is to your 11 in the TQS versus Miller action?
12 recollection, and if vou don't recall, say so, becausej 12 A, That's not my recollection.
13 T know that -- and I didn’t bring the whele file here,§ 13 Q. Ifthat had been your recollection or if it had been
14 because I don't really feel like going through every § 14 your understanding — well, let me do that over.
i5 single email. 15 If -- if Mr. Birkbeck had come to you and said, look,
16 A, Of which there are millions. 16 I want to file a complaint against Terryn solely for
17 Q. Literally. Solreally don't feel like going through ¢ 17 the purpose of mitigating damages in this potential
18 all of those, because my view is they say what they | 18 legal malpractice action against the New York
19 say. 15 attorney, would that have changed your opinion
20 A, Right 20 regarding filing the lawsuit?
21 Q. So asking you does it say that really wastes 21 A. Imight have not recommended it based on if that was
22 everybody's time, right? 22 the purpose of bringing the suit.
23 A, Absolutely. 23 Q. And that would be — tell me if T'm wrong, but that
24 Q. Sohere's the question, though. From what vou 24 would be because, as you said in an emaif -- well,
25 recall -- and if the answer is look at the emails, 25 just for the record, trust me on this, it was
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1 September 17, 2007. That's the email where you kind 1 that the only -- the sole reason that the Terryn
z of gave the caveat, vou know., Z matter was brought in the first place was, as I said,
3 A Um-bum. 3 1o mitigate the damages, once Kolenda issued his
4 . Anyway, so ! think one of the reasons you would answer 4 ruliag, what do you think ~- again, it's a
5 that way, if I'm right, tell me if 'm wrong, wouid be 5 hypothetical -- without speculating, what would your
G it may be very difficult for these claims to survive 6 advice have been regarding an appeal?
7 summary disposition? 7 . Well, I mean, [ really wasn't asked o give advice on
8 A, Correct 8 whether to bring ae appeal. It was just on whether
S Q. That was your thought going in? ] {0 - whether there were appealable issues. But, you
10 A, Yes. 10 know, with the same -- it would have been the same as
11 Q. Aadso then if you knew that, look, the only reason 11 whether -- you know, whether my advice would have beg
1z Mr. Birkbeck wanted to file a complaint was to 12 to bring the c¢laim. Tt would have been, you know,
13 mitigate potential damages, that might have changed i3 you're throwing good money after bad.
14 your opinion? 14 Q. Who -- was it Mr. Birkbeck that was advising Mr. — as
15 A, Correct. 15 far as you know, was it Mr. Birkbeck that was advising
16 Q. Tnfact, given the fact that they may not survive 16 Mr, Meiresomme on the decisions regarding whether or
17 summary dispesition, more likely than not it would 17 not to file the lawsuit, whether or not to appeal; you
18 have changed your opinion, correct? 18 were basically in the role of here's what you can do
18  A. Yeah. Ithink] probably would not have recommended; 19 if you decide to do 17
20 moving forward if -- if -- and that's a big if, z20 . Kind of, yezh. My — my role was not to have direct
21 because it's speculative. Tt wasn't my understanding 21 contact with Mr. Meiresonne. 1 think early on in
2z this is why we were bringing the suit. We were 22 the — in the representation I was sending himn things
23 bringing the suit because Terryn defrauded them. 23 directly, and -- and I think he -- he asked that I not
24 Q. Right. 24 send him things directly,
25 A, But--but, yeah, if -- if that were the 25 Q. Mr. Meiresonne?
Page 31 Page 33
1 understanding, I think I would have said maybe we 1 A, Mr Meiresonne,
2 should rethink -- rethink that course of action. 2 Q. Okay.
3 Q. And i certainly would have changed your opinion 3 A, Sol--my -- my input was given to his in-house
4 regarding whether or not to file an appeal from 4 counsel, who then, I expect, you know, would report
5 Kolenda's decision, right? 5 these things to him. And, indeed, vou know, all of
6 MR. STEC: Well, there's no foundation that 3 our emails were cc'd to Mr, Meiresonne, so I was awarg
7 he made a decision to file the appeal. He's told 7 that he was being informed, but 1 wasn't aware of, you
8 you that -- 8 know. other conversations that Mr, Meiresonne was
9 MR, GRIMM: I'm not saying he did. And if 9 having with his own in-house counsel.
10 I said that, I'm sorry. but - 10 Q. I'mnotsure you meant to say that when you said all
11 MR. STEC: So you're asking him whether it { 11 of the emails were being cc'd to Mr. Meiresonne, and
1z would have modified his assessment of whether therej 12 maybe you're not aware, but there were some that were
13 were appealable issues? 13 not. There were some that were just between you and
14 MR. GRIMM: Yeah. Yeah. Or whether fo 14 Mr. Birkbeck, right?
15 bring the opinion -- the appeal. 15 A Presumably, yeah.
16  BY MR. GRIMM: 16 Q. Yeah
17 Q. Here's whatI'm asking. If youhad - well, TguessI{ 17 A, Butthe majority, [ think, were copied to
18 know the answer, because vour first recommendation] 18 Mr. Meiresonne.
19 would have been don't file suit? 18 Q. Okav. Sothen who did the bulk of the research
20 A. Right. 20 regarding the appealable issues after Kolenda?
21 Q. So this is speculative in some sense? 21 A, Well, I don't recal! who did the bulk of the research,
22 A, Right 22 but I do recall that fo save money in-house counsel
23 Q. But let me put it this way, though. Hypothetically, ; 23 prepared the first draft of the appeal. And I think
24 if you found out after -- if you found out after the A we might have done some of the research. We, meaninf
25 suit was filed but before Kolenda renders his decisionl 25 Law Weathers, might have done some of the research
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1 leading up to that, but my recollection is that the 1 AJ. Birkbeck's role in developing the arguments for
2 first draft of the appeal came from Mr. Birkbeck and i the appeal?
3 Mr. Meiresorne. 3 A, Well, he - we discussed that he had prepared the
4 Q. Now -- and I don't have it, but my understanding is 4 first draft and was, you know, very involved with the
5 that there was a lot of editing going info this 5 editing of it after that. Justin general terms, you
& appeal, comect? & know, it was a very hands-on, in-house representation,
7 A, Correct. 7 You know, we -- there's some cases where in-house
8 . Hang on one second, please, Do you recall seeing any g counsel only wants a memo once every couple of months,
9 emails from Mr. Meiresonne asking about the chances of & and there's some cases where in-house wants to have
10 an appeal -- the chances of a successful appeal? 10 daily contact and information, and this was a very
11 A [don'trecall any specifically, but there might have 11 active in-house representation.
12 been emails where he asked those questions. 12 Q. Soon ascale of one to ten, very hands-on being ten,
13 Q. Butit was your practice not to provide percentage of | 13 one being memo once a month is fine, where would you
14 chances, and that we talked about? 14 putt him?
15 A, Yes, that's correct. 15 A, Itwasaten.
16 Q. Okay. So, at some point, there's a decision to move 16 Q. Did you -- based upon that assessment on your part,
17 ahead with the appeal, and I don't - in the .17 did you get the impression that Mr. Meiresonne was
18 deposition — I probably should have brought - but in 18 relying on Mr. Birkbeck's advice and counsel?
19 the deposition of Mr. Birkbeck, there was a discussion 19 MR. GILCHRIST: Let me object to the
20 about some of these emails. I know you were involved | 20 foundation,
21 in them. You may not remember, but let me just ask it ¢ 21 MR. STEC: You're asking him to speculate,
22 this way. Do you recall — becaunse here's the way 22 form, foundation.
23 I - let me throw all that out, start over. 23 BY MR. GRIMM:
24 A, Okay. 24 Q. You know, don't speculate. I'm saying based upon that
25 Q. The wayI saw this thing leading up to the appeal 25 conduct by Mr. Birkbeck, did you get an impression as
Page 35 Page 37
1 was -- and correct me if this is wrong, but, 1 to whether or not Mr. -- the extent to which
2 basically, vou're saying, guys, [ need to know what 2z Mr. Meiresonne was relying on Mr. Birkbeck?
3 vou want {0 do on this; is that right? 3 A Yeah, my understanding was that -- that they were
4 A, Yeah,T think that that's correct. Yeah. 4 having regular communications and -- and -~ and, yes,
5 Q. Andyou were saying here's what the issues can be? 5 that he was relyving on Mr. Birkbeck's counsel in
6 A. Right & making his decisions.
7 Q. Ithink you've got arguments on these. But you were 7 Q. So at some point -- so at some point, there's a
8 kind of leaving it to Birkbeck and Meiresonne to make 8 decision made by Mr. Meiresonne, Mr. Birkbeck to let's
9 the decision? g move ahead with the court of appeals, let's file it,
10 A, Comect 10 right?
11 Q. Andyou would expect, because Mr. Birkbeck was 11 A, Correct.
12 Mr. Meiresorme's general counsel, that that would be 12 Q. And there was - there was substantial work that went]
13 something he would advise him on regarding whether of 13 into it, [ understand that. Then you made an
14 not that is going to po ahead or not, that was left to 14 estimate - you had made an estimate of the costs of
15 them? 15 the appeal. Do you know, as vou sit here today, or
16 A Cormect. 16 woulid the billings answer this questior, what the
17 Q. Allright 17 total bill for the appeal was?
18 A Yeah Ipresumed that those decisions would be made! 18  A. Thave no idea.
19 between Mr. Meiresomne and his general counsel. 19 Q. Tt would be reflected in the billings?
20 Q. And the nature of those conversations, except as 20 A, Yeah
21 contained in emails, you just don't know what they 21 Q. And that would be easy to determine based upon the
22 tatked about, and you don't know what representations ¢ 22 line item you put for the reason you're charging
23 Mr. Birkbeck made to Mir. Meiresonne in that regard? ¢ 23 whatever you're charging?
24 A, Correct. 24 A. Right. Yeah, on the firm's bills, it's broken out by
25 Q. Did we already discuss, as far as you're concerned, 25 date.
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1 Q. Okay. 1 Q. Tread the transcript. My guess is -- have you read

2 A, So from the date that the appeal decision was made 2 the transcript?

3 until the date it was filed, perhaps, or, you know, 3 A, Unfortunately, ves.

4 until the end of the appeal -- 4 Q. As bad as the transcript is, it was probably worse

5 Q. Now,you-- 5 being there, wasn't it?

6 A, --that would be reflected in the bills. & A, Absolutely.

T Q. Ymsorry, I didn't mean to cut you off. Actually, I 7 Q. Igathered that.

8 did, that's why 1 said it, but I apologize for doing 8 A, It was a very uncomfortable afternoon.

a 0. 9 (L Yeah So here's just a couple of questions on that.
10 Do you -- did you have anything to do with 10 Talbot's enmity was directed toward yvour side of the
11 the outstanding bills that Law Weathers is claiming in} 11 ledger, right?

12 a counterclaim that are owed by Mr. Meiresonne tothe 12 A, Correct.

13 fimn? Did vou have anything to do with the collectioni 13 Q. After the hearing -- well, Mr. Birkbeck was at the

14 of those bills? 14 hearing, 1oo, right?

15 A, No. Hewas -- Mr. Meiresonne was Kevin Krauss's 15 A, Comect.

16 client, so the -- Kevin and, to a lesser degree, Mike 16 Q. Itakeitthat he did not - well, I know -~ never

17 Roth would negotiate the billings with -~ with 17 mind. I know that's the case.

18 Mr. Meiresonne. I didn't really have direct 18 The issue of sanctions came up at that

18 responsibility for that. 1% hearing, didn't it?

20 Q. Soany questions that I would ask you, like effortsto! 20 A, Anissue of sanctions came up. H was my recollectio

21 collect on that afier the conclusion of the Terryn 21 that it was not during my direct but during my

22 matier, would be better directed to -- 22 opponent's tes- -- or argument, an issue came up about

23 A, Sorry, that's me. 23 whether it would be proper to sanction for filing the

24 Q. Take your time. Do you need it? 24 complaint, and I -- T addressed that in my rebuttal

25 A No 25 and said it would not be proper. For one, they hadn't
Page 39 Page 41

1 Q. --would be better direcied to Mr. Kranss or Mr. Roth% 1 preserved it, their right to ask for it, and [ think

2 A Yeah, that's my recollection. z that was the exient of it.

3 Q. Okay. Did you -- so the - the appeal brief is 3 Q. Whichkind of surprised you, because they waived it op

4 finally completed between vou and Mr. Birkbeck and 4 appeal, because they didn't brief i, right?

5 it's filed and then there was a cross-appeal, 1 5 A, Well, I don't know that they had acknowledged that

& believe, on the sanction issue, right? 6 they had waived it. I think they were, you know,

7 A, Correct. 7 hoping to get something from nothing, if you will.

8 Q. Andmy understanding, also, is that prior to the 8 Q. Igotcha. Andjustsoldon't try to - I'm going to

9 hearing or oral argument, when you got -- or the 9 show vou that. I've highlighted a couple of portions.
10 briefing was completed, Terryn kind of waived the 10 This is a Tuesday, August 10, 2010 email from you to
11 argument with regard to sanctions, but they didn't 1t Mr. Birkbeck, copy to Stapleton and Morgan, Soit's
12 brief it, right? 12 quite a ways afier the fact. I'll show it to you. So
13 A, Correct. They did not preserve their -- properly 13 just -- I just want to make sure. This is what I'm
14 preserve their sanctions argument for appeal. 14 seeing, right, it's an email from you to those folks?

15 Q. Right. Now, the -- you did the argument on behalf of; 15 A, Yeah, this appears to be an email from - from me to
16 Mr. Meiresonne and 1QS, right? 16 AL, Stapleton, and Morgan.

17  A. Cormect. 17 Q. And Mr. Meiresonne is not in that email, correct, was
18 Q. Would it be fair to say that the panel was hostile? 18 not included in it?

18 A It would be very fair o say that Judge Talbot was 19 A, Hewasnot. But by including his in-house counsel, 1
20 hostile. The other two members of the panel I don't 20 presumed that it's going to the company.

21 recall weighing in very much at all. Not that they 21 Q. No,I just want to make sure. So one of the things

22 had oxygen to breathe, because Talbot was -- was 22 you say in this is that -- and you're talking about

23 taking it all out of the room with his, you know -- 23 the argument. And it says, We rightly argued that

24 Q. Iread the transcript. 24 Terryn had allowed his appellate sanctions argument to
25 A - fist pounding. 25 fapse and the court of appeals found the same, but no
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1 one thought the court of appeals would order sanctions 1 Q. AndI'm pust going to — I'm just going to cut to
2 sua sponte until the oral argument where that issue 2 this. There was -- in the deposition of Mr. Birkbeck,
3 was raised, right? That's what that says? 3 I asked him some questions about this issne. And
4 A, Letme see. 4 maybe you don't know about it. Tell me if you do knoy
5 Q. Isright there. Iread that right, correci? And1 5 about it, because you can stop me. This issue about a
& Just want to ask you some questions about that. & potential deal or offer fo walk away from the whole
7 A. Yeah, that is what it says. 7 Terryn matter and Thomas H, right, by this -- by
8 Q. Okay. AndI think what you're -- tel! me if this is 8 Mr. Rittinger, New York counsel for Thomas, you knoy
g right. What you were getting at there was that g what I'm talking about, right?
10 because it was waived -- because they didn't brief it? 10 A, T've learned of It, yes.
11 A, Correct. 11 Q. Okay. I'm going to show you Exhibit 40 from the
12 Q. Hwas kind of a surprise to you that they -- they're 12 Birkbeck deposition. And like I said, T'm going to
13 talking sua sponte here about sanctions? 13 try to cut through a lot of this and just cut right to
14 A Well, & was a surprise to me that - that Talbot 14 the chase here. The way it looks to me is like
15 would have brought up sanctions to David Gass and kind 15 Tuesday, March 23rd, 2010, is the first time you found
16 of went through this whole rigmarole about -- 16 out that there was a potential to walk away from -- &
17 Q. How dowe doit. 17 global walk-away type of resolution. And I'm going to|
18 A, --how do we do it when they waived their right to get i 18 show you Exhibit 40, and the highlighted portion is
18 sanctions. So, yeah, it was very concerning at that 19 from -- an email from Mr. Birkbeck to you, and teli
20 point. 20 me -- weil, just tell me once you've read it.
21 Q. Andvyouwere concerned, as you say in the email, thati 21 A T'vereadit. It--
22 they brought i up themselves? That was a concernon § 22 MR. STEC: Wait for the question.
23 vour part? 23 BY MR. GRIMM:
24 A Correct. 24 Q. Okay. Sovyou've read it. So my question is, am I
25 Q. And Mr. Birkbeck was at that hearing with vou. He 25 right that this emafl is the first time you learned
Page 43 Page 45
1 heard the same thing you did, correct? 1 about a potential -~ even a potential to walk away or
2 A, Tpresume so, ves. He was at the hearing. I assume 2 an effort to walk away globally?
3 he heard it. 3 A Tomy recoliection.
4 Q. Ifhe was paying aftention. 4 Q. Okay. Now, I asked Mr. Birkbeck in his depesition,
5 A, T'm sure he was paying attention. We were -- we were; 5 that prior to receiving the court of appeals opinion,
6 on pins and needles, 6 I asked him if he had told you that Mr. Rittinger had
7 Q. Allright. Did you -- if you recall, after the 7 made some kind of statement to that effect, that that
8 hearing is over and you're limping out of the 8 was a possibility, that why don't we all just walk
9 courircom, did you have a discussion with Mr. Birkbeck 9 away from this. This is before the opinion came out
10 about that issue regarding the sanctions; do you 10 from the court of appeals, afier the argument. Is
11 recall? 11 that a true stafement?
12 A. Youknow, I don't recall, but I'm sure that we did. 12 A. That's not true to my recollection. I --1 think
13 I'm sure that we discussed ail the, you know, things 13 after the court of appeals oral argument, T would have
14 that were raised at the hearing, including the 14 strongly recommended that they take a walk-away deat
15 sanctions issue. 15 because we took it in the shorts that day. Se T don't
16 Q. Did youconvey to -- in an email or otherwise - to 16 recall having any conversations in that time period
17 Mr. Meiresonne how badly the hearing went? 17 where it was disclosed that we had a deal on the table
18 A, Idon't know if1 did personally. I mean, vou know, 18 at the time to walk away.
19 his counsel was there and I presumed was going right 19 Q. Tt was, as you say, take it in the shorts, in your
20 back to report to him. 20 experience, that's about as bad as it gets in a court
21 Q. Which is what he usually did? 21 of appeals, isn't it?
22 A Which is what I presumed he usually did. 22 A, It's as bad as I've ever gotten it in the court of
23 Q. Yeah Okay. Prior to -- so you go to the court of 23 appeals, and [ hope that other people have not had
24 appeals hearing, and we talked about all of that. 24 WOTSE.
25 A Um-hum. Yes. 25 Q. Soyou--s0 you had the imliression pot only that it
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1 was likely that you would lose the appeal, but there 1 discussion by the panel is -- particularly Talbot,
2 was also this issue, potentially, of sanctions being 2 let's just stay with Talbot, because he was the one
3 brought up for the first time in that argument, right? 3 that was really driving that train, Is that something
4 A. That's correct. Well, for the first time — 4 that should have been reported to Mike after that
5 Q. Bythe court. 5 hearing, Mike Meiresonne?
6 A, Bythe court, yes. 6 . Yeah. Ithink that's -- my expectation would be that
7 Q. Because it was in -- in the cross-appeal but not 7 that's something that would have been reported, that
g bricfed? g8 the court had brought up sanctions even though the
9 A Yeah Inevery--in every brief that was filed and 2 sanctions claim had been -- not been property
10 every -- you know, the complaint, they answer all 10 preserved for appeal.
i1 these things, there was & request for sanctions put 11 Q. And because your role was what it was, which we've
1z in. But Judge Kolenda property noted that, you know,; 12 talked -- 1 don't think we can beat the horse any
13 these were good-faith claims and that he couldn't 13 more. That's something you would have expected
14 sanction us for bringing them. And, presumably, the | 14 Mr. Birkbeck 10 do?
15 court of appeals would have given that deference, 15 A. Correct, when be -- when he left the courtroom and
16 which, apparently, they, you know, chose not to do, le went to talk to Mike about what happened, presumably.
17 S0 ... 17 That's what I presume he did
18 Q. Well - and as you put in this email, that can happen i 18 Q. And, in fact, the standard of care would have required
19 with any cowt -- 19 that, right, given the fact that sanctions were
20 A Right 20 discussed?
21 Q. --because it's their discretion. 21 A, [think that would have been ordinary, yes.
22 A That'sright 22 Q. Okay. We've covered that. Allright. So did you
23 Q. And they kind of put everybody on notice that at leas; 23 feel as though, at the court of appeals hearing, when
24 they were thinking about going down that road? 24 there was a statement made by Talbot, if you remembey
25  A. Yeah, that's right. 25 where just kind of off-the-cuff or somewhere out of
Page 47 Page 49
1 Q. Soletme ask you this question then. That if you 1 the blue he said, well, we can sanction either the
2 were not told by Mr. Birkbeck that Mr. Rittinger had i parties or the attorneys or both; do you remember that
3 made thts offer -- no, throw that one out, 100, 3 discassion he had?
4 If you had been told -- if you had been. 4 MR. STEC: Well, you're taking it out of
5 told that that was an offer that was on the table, 5 context. He used the word frivotous in there, and
6 what would your recommendation to Mr. Birkbeck - ol;, 6 there hadn't been any finding of any frivolous --
7 you answered that, that you would have said take it, 7 MR. GRIMM: Right. But what he was
8 get it done, walk away, move away. 8 saying - I don't know if somebody has the transcript.
9 A, After the court of appeals argument, I would have 9  BY MR. GRIMM:
10 recommended that we not, you know, mess with thisany 10 Q. But I think there was a stafement that said -- because
11 more because of the potential for a bad result from 11 they were talking about how do we do it, do you
12 the court of appeals. 1z remernber that, how do we even go about doing it, and
13 Q. Asfarasyourecall, if Mr. Birkbeck testified that 13 there was an issue of where do we have the hearing
14 he did absolutely tell you that there was this 14 because Kolenda had retired, and there was a
15 potential offer on the table before the opinion came 15 discussion about sending it back to his replacement,
16 out, as far as you recall, would that be a true 16 who I don't think they knew at the time, but it was
17 statement? 17 Trusock. But there was a statement that one of them
18 A, Ithink that that wouid be an inaccurate statement. 18 made that we can sanction under the court rule either
19 Q. Aninaccurate? 19 the litigant or the attorneys; do you remember that?
20 A, Correct. 20 MR. STEC: Well, let me --
21 Q. Justgive me one second, because I want to find that. 21 THE WITNESS: I don't remember that. I'm
22 I just want to make sure I didn't misquote anything. 22 SOITY.
23 So I've got a few more questions, but I do want to 23 MR. GRIMM: Do you have that? I'm sorry.
24 just - well, let me just ask you this before I find 24 You have.
25 this. Sorry. Do you feel like this statement or this 25 MR. STEC: I'm going to object. 1 do have
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1 it. And what the judge said, on page 31, was, well, 1 about this reason for filing the lawsuit, about it
2 if there were a finding of frivolous, it also can be 2 being solely to mitigate damapes in another case. We
3 applied, as you know under the court rule, both to the; 3 talk -- you answered all of that. Would your answer
4 litigants as well as counsel. 4 with regard to those questions on that be the same if
5 MR. GRIMM: Right. 5] the reason -~ the initial reason for bringing the
& MR. STEC: But that was in the context of 6 lawsuit was to make Christopher Terryn feel some of
7 talking aboug -- Gass was arguing about —- Kolenda 7 Meiresonne's pain?
8 should have imposed sanctions if he would have 8 MR. STEC: Object to vagueness, but go
5 addressed the other three counts that he never 9 abead if you understand what that means.
10 addressed. That's what Gass was arguing about whick 10 THE WIENESS: Yesah, I don't know that I
1% led to that whole exchange. il under- —- I would understand what feel the pain woukd
12 BY MR. GRIMM: 12 mean, but - but 1 -- yeah, I mean, [ don't think
13 Q. Butthere was astatement in there — in that hearing, | 13 you -- you bring a lawsuit out of pure spite or
14 there was a statement about the court rule allows for 14 vindictiveness. I don't think you do that, either. |
15 a court, in its discretion, to sanction either the 15 dom't think those claims work, But -- bk, you know,
16 counsel or the litigant, correct? He just read it. le by feel the pain, it would mean he cost him $2-1/2
17 A, It says what it says. 17 million and he, you know, needs to — and he defrauded
18 Q. Yeah Did you feel like that put youin a potential 18 him, then I think, you know, that would be a different
19 conflict situation with Mr. Meiresonne or not? 15 answer.
20 A. No, because, again, they -- what they were talking 20 BY MR. GRIMM:
21 about was the sanctions for bringing the claim -- for 21 Q. It would depend on what Mr. Birkbeck meant by a
22 bringing the complaint, and the court of appeals 22 staiement like that?
23 doesn't have -- didn't have authority to sanction 23 A Correct,
24 Mr. Meiresonne or us for bringing the complaint, 24 MR. GILCHRIST: Mr. Birkbeck?
25 because Judge Kolenda didn't do so, unless they found 25 MR. GRIMM: Um-hum. Give me one minute
Page 51 Page 53
1 that Kolenda abused his discretion. 1 with Meiresonne.
2 Q. Allright 2 MR. STEC: Sure.
3 A So-- 3 (Off the record at 2:07 p.m.)
4 Q. So,eventually, this gets back to Trusock? 4 (Back on the record at 2:10 pm.)
5 A, Correct. 5 MR. GRIMM: Okay. I'm all set. All done.
6 Q. Why was - why did you have Steve Stapleton handle 6 MR. GILCHRIST: Allright. Why don't you
7 that part of the case? 7 give me a five-minute break, and we'll finish up
8 A, Well, once -- my recollection is -- 8 really quick.
9 Q. Yes. 9 {Off the record at 2:10 p.m.)
10 A, - once we had the bad result, you know, from the 10 {Back on the record at 2:20 p.m.)
11 court of appeals, Mr. Meiresonne wanted to have 11 EXAMINATION
12 someone moge senior handle his appeals going forward; 12 BY MR. GILCHRIST:
13 the appeals 1o the Supreme Court and the remand beforeé 13 Q. Mr. Morant, my name is Mark Gilchrist.
14 Judge Trusock. 14 A, M3 Mark.
15 Q. Okay. 15 Q. I'mbhere on behalf of AJ. Birkbeck. 1 just havea
16 A Sol- youlknow, [ met with Mike Roth and - and Bob 16 couple of follow-up questions for you.
17 Buchanan, and we talked about who the -- who that 17 A Okay.
18 would be. And Steve Stapleton had just taken a case 18 Q. You've used the terms describing A.J.'s role in the
19 to the court of appeals and was a more experienced -- i9 QS v Terryn lawsuit both as in-house counsel and
20 or the Supreme Court and was a more experienced 20 general counsel. Do you use those terms
21 litigator on that vein of work, so it was decided to 21 interchangeably?
22 hand it off to Steve. 22 A, Ido.
23 Q. Okay. 23 Q. Okay. Okay.
24 A Long answer short, the client requested it. 24  A. Tbelieve, actually, I used in-house counsel and then
25 Q. Just going back, one question was -- we had talked 25 Mr. Meiresonne's counsel used general counsel. 1 wag
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1 Just repeating his choice of tenms. 1 you would glaringly disagree with with respect to
2 Q. Andthat’s fine. Ithink that A.J. has described 2 A.L's prior testimony that he was referring to the
3 himself as general counsel and I think plaintiff has 3 lower court action, not the court of appeals; is that
4 used similar language. Buf at least in your mind, 4 also correct?
5 m-house counsel and general counsel are -- 5 MR. STEC: Well, he said he didn't read his
& A Synonymous. & testimony, so objection, foundation.
7 Q. --interchangeable terms? 7 THE WITNESS: Well, I mean, if -- if what
g8 A, Thats correct. B this was referring to was the -- being sanctioned for
2 Q. Okay. And then your role in all of this, obviousiy, 9 the underlying -- for filing of the complaint and we
10 was as outside litigation counsel? 10 were already in the court of appeals and Kolenda had
11 A, Correct. 11 already ruled that ~- found that our underlying
12 Q. Andyouor your firm made afl the filings in that 12 complaint was not frivolous, then -- then I ~ I mean,
13 case, including the appeals? 13 I still would not say never or, you know, that there
14 A, We filed the briefs, comrect. 14 was very - but it would be - it would have been --
15 Q. Right. And conducted all the oral arguments? 15 it would have taken the court of appeals to have foun
16 A Correct. -t 16 that Kolenda had abused his discretion in not
17 Q. And--and A.J. was in attendance of those things, but 17 sanctioning us to a result in sanctions. So to that
18 he never made -- he never stood up in court or made ' 18 extent, I would — that's my understanding of what
19 arry arguments on the plamtiffs' behalf in this case? 19 that would have said as to that. T mean, again, I --
20 A Well, T can't speak to what happened, only my portion 20 I'would net have said never, but -- because I just -
21 of the involvement in it. 21 anything can happen, but - but it would make more
22 Q. Aliright. Andwould I be right with respect to your 22 sense, at least, if that's what it was referring to.
23 portion, the portion of your involvement in the case? 23 BY MR. GILCHRIST:
24 A. To my recollection, that's correct, 24 Q. And, in fact, that's exactly what happened, right? I
25 Q. Okay. Let me show you what has been marked previously 25 mean, Kolenda had the opportunity to sanction and hg
Page 55 Page 57
1 as Exhibit 39. And you were asked about that document 1 declined --
2 by Mr. Grimm earlier in the deposition; do you recall Z A Declined.
3 that? 3 Q. --toexercise that opportunity, correct?
4 A Ido. 4 A Right
5 Q. Okay. Andhave youread A.l's deposition? 5 Q. Youread Kolenda's opinion.
& A, Ihavenot, 6 A, Thave
7 Q. Okay. He testified, with respect to the last 7 Q. Andwould it be fair to say in reading his opinion
8 sentence, Unlike Thomas versus IQS, there's virtually 8 that he found evidence to support IQS's position,
9 no chance that we would be ordered to pay the other 9 correct?
10 side's attorney fees. The need to do so there was 10 A, Absolutely.
11 statutory. Do you see where ['m pointing? 11 Q. Andevidence te support Terryn's positien?
12 A ldo. 12 A, Correct.
13 Q. A testified at his deposition that that sentence 13 Q. And thought that it was, in fact, an issue of first
14 was referring to the trial court aspect of the case, 14 impression in Michigan?
15 not the court of appeals. 15 A Right
16 A, I--1can'tspeak to the context of that, because I 16 Q. Made his decision in Terryn's favor —
17 didn't write it, and it's only one page out of what 17 A. Correct.
18 appears fo be, perhaps, a multi-page document. 18 Q. --comect?
19 Q. Okay. But--but as aresult of that, you, obviously, 13 But was in no way going to issue sanctions
20 have no evidence to indicaie that A.J. was incorrect 20 because it was a close call?
21 as fo what he was referring to when he drafted that 21 A, Correct.
22 senfence; is that fair? 22 Q. Okay.
23 A, That's fair. I can't speak to the context of what he 23 A, Yeah, that's my understanding. He invited the appeal,
24 meant, because I didn't draft it. 24 Kolenda's decision.
25 Q. Okay. And-- and as — | mean, there's nothing that 25 Q. And] was gomng fo ask you that, because vou used thag
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1 exact language. 1 in your mind, decision makers and you were executing
2 A Yes 2 what you feit they wanted; is that fair?
3 Q. Because it was an issue of first impression and 3 A, Correct.
4 because it was filed in good faith, Kolenda invited 4 Q. Okay.
5 the appeal, for the court of appeals to decide this 5 A, Correct.
6 issue? & Q. Buton the other hand, of course, if they were making
7 A, That's correct. And in a footnote, I think he even 7 decisions that, in your mind, mayhbe not even likely,
8 mentioned that the court of appeals would have to pass 8 but there was a chance that sanctions would be
9 on these issues, you know, would have to take up these 2 forthcoming, either to the plaintiff or certainly to
i0 issues. 10 your law firm as the entity who signed the document tq
11 Q. Let me show you the second sentence on Exhibit 39. 11 be submitted, you would have raised those red flags,
1z There A.J's clearly referring to the appeal, because 1z right?
i3 he references the appeal. 13 A Towhom?
14 A, You're talking about the second sentence in the first 14 Q. Toeither AT or the plaintiff, probably A.1,
is paragraph? 15 A, Well, yeah. I mean, Mr. Birkbeck was in the room fo
16 Q. T'msorry, I pointed to the wrong place. Wecanonly § 16 the oral argument. I mean -
17 speculate, that sentence. 17 Q. TI'm talking about before the -- before the briefs
18 A Okay. 18 were -- were submitted or at -- at the lime the
1% Q. Andl read that correctly when [ say, We can only 15 decision to pursue the appeal was taken, okay, so well
20 speculate as to the grounds for appeal until such time 20 before oral argument.
21 as we have a chance to review his decision. 21 A, Okay. So can vou restate your question?
22 A Correct, that's what it reads. 22 Q. Tcan Absolutely. My fault for not orienting you.
23 Q. Okay. Andyou agree that his decision would be Judge 23 A. Ilost the question in the - in there.
24 Kolenda's opinion -- Judge Kolenda's decision, by his, | 24 Q. To the proper time frame.
25 because it's singular? He's not talking about a 25 A, Yeah
Page 59 Page 61
1 panel. 1 Q. Ifatthe point in time where everybody is deciding
2 A, Well, I think given the date of the document, that 2 should we pursue an appeal -
3 that is the assumption that I would make. 3 A Okay.
4 Q. Because this came out prior to «- 4 Q. --ornot, if even -~ even in your mind that they were
5 A, The oral argument in the court of appeals. That's 5 the decision makers and you were just execuiing the
6 January -- & plan, if you thought there was, you know, any kind of]
7 MR. STEC: 2008. 7 risk or - I mean, I realize we can never say never.
8 THE WITNESS: 2008. 8 A, Right
9 BY MR. GILCHRIST: & Q. llitigate, so I understand that. T know exactly what
10 Q. Okay. And, you know, we've used the term speculation, 10 you're saying. But if there was a risk, whether we
11 and I'm not -- T don't ask us Lo insuit your 11 call it real or significant or whatever —
12 intelligenoe at all, but when you read that, a fair 12 A, Right.
13 reading of that -- or fair reading of this, that 13 Q. - of sanctions as to either the plaintiff, as the
14 sentence, is that A.J. is saving that, you know, until 14 party, or, presumably, Law Weathers —
15 we get Kolenda's decision, we're not going tobave any | 15 A, Right.
16 idea what the basis of the appeal is going to be? 16 Q. --asthe party's attorney, that you would have raised
17 A Correct, becanse we don't know the basis on which he'ds 17 red flags; vou would have said, whoa, hold on a
18 going to uphold or deny the motion. 18 second, I'm not sure we can do that?
1% Q. And then, of course, we can only speculate means we | 19 A. Inthe -- 1 think T understand your question. In
z0 can only guess? 20 the -- in the assessment of claims or - or, you know,
21 A, Correct. 21 issues that would have to be addressed in appealing,
2z Q. Allright. Now, there was some discussion about the 22 ves, if there were — if sanctions was a -- was a big
Z3 issue of potential sarctions in the court of appeals 23 risk, we would have identified that in the issues that
z4 and -- I mean, I recognize that it's your testimony 24 we addressed in looking at the -- in looking at
25 that the plaintif{ and A.J. were, perhaps, more the, 25 whether you could appeal or not, but - or, you know,
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1 whether appealing was, you know, a great idea or not. 1 didn't really review anything today.

2 But the -- given that Kolenda had already denied a Z Q. Do youremember an email or an issue -- this was

3 sanctions, you know, request, it would have besn more 3 marked as Exhibit 29 in the plaintiff's deposition,

4 of an uphill for plaintiffs to get sanctions, because 4 and I'll certainly show it to you. But before 1 do

5 they would have to have Kolenda's decision overturned,} 5 that, I just want to ask if you recall the issue,

6 so it would have been less likety in this -- in this & where somebody asked if -- if we - by we, I mean, yot

7 case. 7 know, 1QS -- ought to affirmatively ask for sanctions.

8 Q. Sothe risk of anybody getting sanctioned by the court 8 And you said, ah, no, slow down, I don't think that we

2 of appeals dropped when Kolenda said no, I'm not 9 ought to do that.

10 issuing sanctions? 10 A, What was the time frame on that again?

11 A. Correct. On the basis of filing the complaint, 11 Q. Icanshow it to you

12 correct. But there's -- I mean, there's always a risk 12 A. 1think he hasit.

13 that you can be sanctioned by any court, and all 13 Q. Dovyouremember the issue at all?

14 attorneys know that. You know, courts do what they 14 A, Vaguely.

15 want to deo, and they have the authority on their own 15 Q. Go ahead and take a look at it.

16 and discretion to sanction people. So there is a risk 16 A Okay. I'vereadit

17 that's always -~ that's kind of a smaller inherent 17 Q. Andwas] correct in terms of my sort of paraphrasing

18 risk that's always there. 18 of the issue, there was a request made that IQ8

1% Q. Butin pursuing the appeal, if that was a risk that 19 affirmatively seck sanctions and you advised against

20 you were concerned about, you would have -- you woulg 20 that?

z1 have raised that with somebody? 21 A, Yeah, that appears to be correct.

22 A, We did not ~ or I did not think that the plaintiffs 22 MR. GRIMM: Can ! see that?

23 would prevail on their -- on appealing Judge Kolenda's | 23 BY MR. GILCHRIST:

24 sanctions ruling. 24 Q. And the reason, as I read it, is because, no, the

25 Q. Evenif they had not dropped it, right? 25 court of appeals doesn't like that stuff, let's take
Page 63 Page €5

1 A, Yeah, even if they had not dropped it because of the, 1 the -- the higher ground, and just deal with their

i you know, benefit you get from the lower court's 2 argument on sanctions, and that's the best way to

3 ruling. 3 handle #?

4 Q. Andwhat is that? What benefit does the party get 4 A, That's correct. Yeah, that and their -- their appeal,

5] from the lower court's ruling? 5 their cross-appeal, you know, was a good-faith

& A. That - well, they -- you would -- the reviewing court 6 cross-appeal. So, yeah, there really wasn't a reason

7 would have to overturn the lower court to change his 7 to sanction -- go for sanctions against them. That

8 ruling, and that's a higher standard. 8 was -- that I felt would have been worthwhile.

8 Q. Youtestified that in this case, the overwhelming, if % Q. Even though vou reporied things through Mr. Birkbeck,
10 not all, medium of communication was -- with respect ; 10 there's no doubt in your mind that your client, in the
11 10 you was by way of email? 11 underltying case, was IQS, right?

12 A. Yeah. The vast majority of communications withthe: 12 A, Correct.

13 plaintiff - with Mz. Meiresonne and Mr. Birtkbeck wer¢ 13 Q. And that IQS and Mz. Meiresonne are — I mean,

14 through email. 14 Mr. Meiresoane is the face of IQS?

15 Q. Okay. Andyou don't think -- again, I mean, there's 15 A Mr Meiresonne, yes, was the principal —~ was the
16 no email that's -- where you're raising the specter of 16 principal of IQS, right.

17 sarctions at the point in time when -- when everyone 17 Q. Right Imean, vou're not -- in terms of keeping the
i8 is deciding whether to pursue this appeal in your best 18 clients well informed, you have to -- a person has io
1% recollection? 19 be well informed, just not a corporate entity doesn't
20 A. Idon'trecall whether there is or is not. T have not 20 keep information, right?

21 looked back through the many, many volumes of emaity 21 A. Correct. But I wouid add that in-house counsel was a
22 that we had. 22 person --

23 Q. What did you do to prepare for today? 23 Q. Right

24 A Notmuch, frankly.  came in and T met with counsel § 24 A, --as well.

25 and walked through some issues; but other than that, T ! 25 Q. But let me ask you this way. I mean, your - if you
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i were concerned that Mr. Meiresonne was not being well 1 MR. GRIMM: Okay. What number is that, by
2 informed, then it would have been your ethical 2 the way? Is that 427
3 obligation to make sure that he was or do you think 3 MR. GILCHRIST: 42.
4 that you just had to keep A.J. informed? 4 BY MR. GILCHRIST:
5 A, Well, that's an assumption. 1 never felt that way, 5 Q. The tome entry on the 9th indicates, of course, this
6 that Mr, Meiresonne wasn't being informed. 6 is a billing entry from A.J.'s law firm, Fulerum Law
7T Q. And that's where T was going. 7 Group, from February of 2010, is that what it appears
8 A, My understanding was that he was always being informed 8 0 be?
9 by Mr. Birkbeck. 8 A, That's what it appears to be.
10 Q. And that's where | was going. That -- that based on 10 Q. Sure. And on the 9th, it indicates draft email to Les
11 your review of the emails and the information that was 11 Morant, Law Weathers, regarding New York developmenis
1z going back and forth, you were satisfied that 12 in Thomas [3; is that right?
13 Mr. Meiresonne was sufficiently informed to make 13 A, That's what it says.
i4 decistons about the case? 14 Q. 0.1, and then there's a telephone - there's an entry
15 A Correct. 15 indicating a telephone conference with yourself
16 Q. Okay. 16 regarding the same of a .4; is that right?
17 A, Tomy understanding, cormrect. 17 A That's what it says.
18 Q. This Thomas II settlement offer that's been an issue, 18 Q. Andthen areview of an email from Mr. Meiresoime
19 let me show you an email. [ don't remember if this i9 regarding the same. That's the final entry?
20 has been previously marked. It's an email dated 20 A Correct.
21 February 9, 2010, from A.J, to you; is that correct? 21 Q. Okay. Now, this was shortly after the Thomas I
22 MR. GRIMM: What was that guestion? Sorry. 22 settlement conference where they — the walk-away
23 MR. STEC: It's an email from A.J, to Les. 23 offer, as we're describing it, was made.
24 THE WITNESS: Correct, this is an email 24 A, 1don't know that to be a fact, but I'll take your
25 from A.J. to me, dated February 9, 2010. 25 word for it.
Page 67 Page 69
1 BY MR. GILCHRIST: 1 Q. Do you --having seen this entry, having seen the
2 Q. Okay. And February 9th was after the oral argument -+ 2 email that, hey, we need to talk -- we being yourself
3 A Correct. 3 and AJ. - we need to talk about the developments in
4 Q. - but before the court of appeals decision? 4 New York, does that change your time frame at all as
5 A, Correct, to my recoliection. 5 to when vou learned about the walk-away effort? Does
6 Q. Okay. & that refresh your memory as to having discussions with
7 MR, GRIMM: Can I see it? 7 A.J. about the offer to -- for everyone just to go
8 MR. GILCHRIST: Sure. 8 their separate ways?
8 BY MR. GILCHRIST: 9 A. No. My recoilection is that that conversation
10 Q. And what A.J. is teliing you here is T would like to 10 regarded something else that happened in New York, anf
11 discuss the Terryn case with you today in light of the 11 1 think Mr. Birkbeck requested some research and a
1z recent developments in New York; is that right? 12 memo on something that -- that happened at the -- in
13 A, That's what it says, correct. 13 New York, and it may be reflected in my ows time
14 MR. GRIMM: And let's mark this. 14 records.
15 MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION 15 Q. Did you know that Mr. Meiresonne specifically wanted
16 DEPOSITION EXHIBIT 42 16 1o keep that setflement dersand from -- from you?
17 2:39 p.m. 17 A, Ididn't know that until just recently when I read
18 BY MR. GILCHRIST: 18 about that.
19 Q. Exhibit 42. Take alook at the time entry from the 19 Q. Did youread about that in Mr. Meiresonne's
20 9th. 20 deposition?
21 A Okay. 21 A. No. lthink I reviewed an email relating to that with
22 MR. GRIMM: I'm sorry, do you need if to 22 counsel prior to the hearing today.
23 ask him questions? 23 Q. Okay. And - and in reviewing those emails, was ii as
24 MR. GILCHRIST: I do, butt if you want to 24 clear to you as it was to me that Mr. Meiresonne did
25 take a look at it, feel free. 25 not want to tell you about the settlement offer, but
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1 AL said, no, we have to tell you about the 1 I'd hate to speculate on -- T don't know what was
2 settlement offer? 2z going on in that action, but it's hard to imagine
3 MR. STEC: Well, I'm going to object, 3 anything else that would happen there that would
4 because I don't think those emails say that and they 4 affect the action in Michigan.
5 don't refer to some specific settlement offer. So I 5 Q. And then, lastly -- again, this is on February Sth —
6 object, there's no foundation for that. T certainly o corroborating A.L's time enfry, or at least the email
7 don't dispute that there's a discussion going back and T does, spoke with Les on both accounts and he agrees.
8 forth about some Thomas issues but not specifically 8 That's what the email I'm pointing to says; is that
a with regard to that. 9 right.
10 BY MR. GILCHRIST: 10 A Well, yeah. I mean, the email says, We want Les to
11 Q. Well, let me show you, in light of that objection, and 11 understand that we want to proceed with Terryn if we
12 Il ask you the same question, February 9th email 1z still have a chance to win and if the cost of doing so
13 from Mr. Birkbeck to the plaintiff indicating Les 13 is not prohibitive. Spoke with Les on both accounts
14 needs to know all of the facts, even the Thomas IT 14 and he agrees. He's getting an estimate on cost and
15 demands; did I read that properly? 15 whether it would be likely -- or whether he would be
1o A, Youdidread that properly. i6 the attorney doing it. Let's talk soon. That's what
17 Q. Okay. And didyou take that as being A.T. is 17 it says. Tt --well, yeah..
18’ advocating to plaintiff that youneed te be keptup to | 18" Q. While we took a break, T asked you to flip through
15 speed on certain things? 19 the -- the rebuttal.
20 A. Tmean, you know, [ wasn't privy to any of those at | 20 A, 1did
21 the time, but that's what it appears fo be saying, 21 Q. And it looks like you made a note here or a sticky
22 Q. Andthe email -- Mr. Meiresonne's email right above; 22 note with --
23 that indicates he also has to imow that we want to 23 A, Counsel did.
24 continue to prosecute Terryn if at all possible; did T 24 Q. - with something on it.
25 read that right? 25 MR. GILCHRIST: Okay. Do you want this
Page 71 Page 73
1 A That's what it says, correct. 1 back, Gary?
2 Q. Soweneed him to know that we do want to prosecute 2 MR. STEC: I just wanted to mark it so - I
3 Terryn; did T also read that correctly? 3 anticipated where — what vou were going to ask him ~
4 A, Correct. 4 s0 he wouldn't lose the spot.
5 Q. Butnot contingent on the Thoinas IT demands. 5 BY MR. GILCHRIST:
6  A. That's what it says. 6 Q. You had testified earlier, I think, that when you had
7 Q. Okay. And as alitigator, a demand typically 1s an 7 your opportunity for rebuttal that you pointed out
8 offer or request from one's opponent to do something; 8 that -- that, hey, Terryn waived the opportunity to
9 is that fair? g seek sanctions; is that — was that your testimony?
10 A. Fair 10 A Well, yeah. T--
11 Q. AndIknow it's not exactly clear with respect to 11 Q. Yes?
12 these emails, but a demand can also be used in the 12 A Yes.
13 context of a settlement demand. That's a phrase that 13 Q. Okay. AndI didn't see that - as ] was reading
14 we, as hitigators, use fairly often, right? 14 through the rebuttal, when you were testifying, I
1% A, It can be, correct. 15 didn't see you raise that point; did you on -- on
16 Q. Right. And ! understand this ong is not - it's not 16 reflection?
17 exactly cleaz, but it certainly is referencing demands 17 A Well on -- I mean, I didn't ~ T didn't say -- or
ig all over these emaits, right? 18 maybe [ did, but T didn’t see it in there, where it
19 A Yeah. Imean, it's the first I've really seen them, 18 said, you know, that they waived it. But what I
20 but yes. 20 pointed out in that ~ basically, the entirety of the
21 Q. Canyou think of any other demands that would have; 21 rebuttal was that all of the claims that they were
22 arisen out of the Thomas II piece of litigation, other 22 saying in their brief were frivolous and shouid have
23 than a settlement offer, that would have impacted the |} 23 been in their favor and that was the basis for their
24 Terryn Htigation? 24 argument on -- for their sanctions on the underlying
25 A, Youknow, I mean, I wasn't involved with Thomas II! 25 case were, In fact, not frivolous and could not
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1 support 2 finding of sanctions. So that's what the 1 happened that day at the -- at the hearing, including

2 entirety of the rebuttal basically says. 2 sanctions discussion.

3 Q. Okay. AndIthink that's fair. [ mean, I think what 3 Q. Didyouhave a sense as to whether you were misled by

4 you're saying, my read of the rebuttal, is that there 4 Mr. Meiresonne regarding the time frame of the

5 was support to bring all of these clatms. 5 copying?

& A, Correct. 6 A, Irecall at some point in time that became an issue

7 Q. And1don't know if you used the term good faith, buy 7 Jate in the litigation.

8 that's what -- 8 Q. When you say became an issue, in what way?

9 A Correct. 9 A Well, it was brought to my at{ention that they may
10 Q. --you're implying -- 10 have been incorrect about Mr. Terryn and whether he
11 A, Cormrect, 11 was the first to copy. That was late in the — that
12 Q. - inmaking argument; is that fair? 12 was, | think, around the time that the Supreme Court
13 A Correct. And it was, you know, to point out that they 13 briefs were being filed.
i4 issues that weren't raised by Kolenda in his decision, | 14 Q. You were operating under the presumption that -- that
15 which were the ones that were the subject of Terryn's| 15 Terryn was the only one doing the copying?

16 cross-appeal, were, in fact, good-faith claims and 16 A Correct.

17 could not be sanctioned: o o 17. Q. And doyou have a sense as to whether A J. was

18 MR. GILCHRIST: I'm sorry, I was kind of 18 operating under that same assumption?

15 reading and fistening at the same time. Can you say 19 A Well, T got the underlying facts from A.J., 501

20 that again? 20 presume that he was -- that that was his

21 THE WITNESS: Well, maybe she canread it { 21 understanding, as well.

22 back. It would be betier. 22 Q. Okay. And at some point in fime, you said later in

23 MR. STEC: Well, he's just saying that the 23 the litigation, you became aware of -- of differing

24 three counts that Gass was relying upon in the requestt 24 facts?

25 for sanctions weren't even addressed by Kolenda, 25 A Itwas~well, A.J, I think, wrote me an email and
Page 75 Page 77

1 THE WITNESS: Yeah. 1 indicated that they had done an internal investigation

2 MR. GILCHRIST: Okay. 2 or something and found that Mr. Terryn wasn't,

3 THE WITNESS: Yeah. 3 perhaps, the only one or the first one o be doing the

4  BY MR. GILCHRIST: 4 copying.

5 Q. Did you look at any emails after -- that -- that you 5 Q. And you thought that was a problem?

6 may have comprised after oral arguments in the court €6 A Idid think that was a problem.

7 of appeals? 7 Q. Why would that be a problem?

& A, When; today? B A Well, it was a 180 from the facts that we had pled and

9 Q. Recently, I mean such that they'd be fresh in your 9 vociferously argued throughout. It undercut the basic
10 MEmory. 10 premise of the claim, in my opinion.

11 A. Notreally. 11 Q. Canyou-- when you learned of this information, can
12 Q. AndIaskthis, and T can assure you I don't know thef 12 you ~- can you place it int the timeline of events?

13 answer, but I'm just trving to get your -- your take 13 A Well, 1 think if was -- it was certainly after the

14 on it. After oral argument, did you compose an emailj 14 appellate arguments and after the court of appeals
15 saying, hey, guys we're in trouble or -- or something § 15 opinion. I think it was right before the Supreme

16 1o that effect? Whether or not you actually used the 16 Court bricfs were 1o be filed.

17 term sanctions or not, but did you let anybody know | 17 Q. The complaint that was filed in the -~ in the Terryn
18 this is -- this is problematic? 18 case, did you prepare that?

19 A Imean, I may bave at some point, but how far away | 12 A, Idid, myself and Mr. Birkbeck.

20 that was from the date of the argument, I -- I 20 Q. Okay. And do you remember that it was a verified
21 couldn't say. 1'm sure that we discussed the 21 complaint?

22 possibility, yeah, of sanctions and other things. 1 22 A Tdo.

23 mean, like -- like I said in -- on direct, L had - [ 23 Q. And what does that mean?

24 believe that as we walked out of the courthouse, A.J. | 24  A. That means that the client has verified that all facts
25 and I had a conversation about all the things that 25 that are stated in the complaint are true and
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1 aceurate. 1 DEPOSITION EXHIBIT 43
2 Q. Okay. And did the verified complaint state anything 2 2:56 pan.
3 with respect to whether — state anything with respect 3 MR. GILCHRIST: Okay. No further
4 to when the copying occurred? 4 questions.
5 A, [believe that it did. I mean, I don't recall the 5 MR. GRIMM: Thank you.
6 specific paragraphs of it offhand. 6 {The deposition was concluded at 2:56 p.m]
7 Q. What's your best recollection? 7 Signature of the withess was not requested by
8 A Myrecollection is that it stated that Mr. Terryn 8 counsel for the respective parties hereto.)
9 was -- had decided on his own to copy these facts 9
10 and - or these Thomas entries and had proceeded to doi 10
11 50. 11
12 Q. Inother words, that Terryn had acted solely on his 12
13 awn? 13
14 A Correct. 14
15 Q. Okay. And, again, that was signed by the plaintiff, 15
I Mr. Meiresonne? 16
17 A Correct. The complaint was signed by him, correct. 17
18 Q. Andis that attesting then that, at least in his mind, 18
12 that all the facts as stated in that pleading are -- 15
20 are accurate? 20
21 A, That is my understanding of the verification, correct. | 21
22 MR. GILCHRIST: Okay. Steve, do you have | 22
23 any more? 23
24 MR. GRIMM: No. 24
25 MR. GILCHRIST: Okay. Give me onc minute | 25
Page 79 Page 81
1 then. 1 CERTIFICATE OF NOTARY
2 MR. GRIMM: No, we're done. Oh, while 2 STATE OF MICHIGAN )
3 you're looking, I think -- can we have this one, the 3 188
4 last one you referred to, marked? 4 COUNTY OF OTTAWA )
5 MR, GILCHRIST: Yeah. I wasn't sure if we 5
6 had marked it or not, but let's -- 6 1, PEGGY 8. SAVAGE, certify that this
7 MR. GRIMM: Do you know, Gary, if we have? 7 deposition was taken before me on the date
& MR. STEC: I don't remember, 8 hereinbefore set forth; that the foregoing questions
9 MR. GRIMM: Let's just mark it. Ifit'sa 9 and answers were recorded by me stenographically and
10 duplicate -- is that all right with you guys? 10 reduced to computer transcription; that this is a
11 MR. GILCHRIST: Okay. 11 true, full and correct transcript of my stenographic
12 MR. STEC: Yeah. 12 notes so taken; and that T am not related to, nor of
13 MR. GILCHRIST: Let's just identify it. 13 counsel to, either party nor interested in the event
14 MR. GRIMM: Do you want me to do it? I've 14 of this cause.
15 got it right here. 15
16 MR, GILCHRIST: Yeah, that's fine. 16
17 MR. GRIMM: So just for the record, we're 17
18 marking, as Exhibit 43, which might be duplicative, 18
19 but it is a series of emails between -- well, there's i9
20 one A.J. Birkbeck to Mike Meiresonne, Mike Meiresone 20
21 io Al Birkbeck, Al Birkbeck to Mike Meiresonne, et | 21
22 cetera. And there's one on that date from A.J. 22 PEGGY S. SAVAGE, C5R-4189, RPR
23 Birkbeck to Les Morant dated -- and copying Mike 23 Notary Public,
24 Meiresonne, dated February 9. Okay. 24 Ottawa County, Michigan.
25 MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION 25 My Commission expires: 7-13-1%
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S From "A J Bnrkbeck" <a;bsrkbeck@fulcrumiaw,com> : T N
L Tos <lesMorant@LWR.con>, "Mike: Meiresonne” <mkem@_dustr:a]wucksearch £Lom:>, f R Rl e
. Datei Tue, 14 Aug 2007 14:00%47 20400

: ..Sub;ect Terryn Case ~ Conferenceﬁall BT S i SRR

RN Where Te]ecanference

A J Blrkbeckwﬁi mxttatethecaﬂ : S

e Gﬁ:nﬂemen

- Mike Roth asked 1 me tc\ take 4 iook at your case and research pasmbis Clalms 1QS could E S
- bring against Chris Terryn arising from his emplovmem and false statements made to.01- R

.'Canada) S _ ; : T EEE

i NY courts regarding 1QS and its business activities. Lhave begun that processin’ o0 - L

" earnest but I have several questions about the under Ivmc Tawsuitin NY that need 16 be -

S answered befme I can deﬁﬂtwelv respond to your mqmrv Speclﬁcallv, I wouId hi\e to

S Exacﬂ}f what cla,nns were ratsed agamst IQS in the NY acﬁon‘? S

SN Who were the people named gs 3rd party defendants in that case and wiw‘? S
"3, Was Chids Terryn mamed as a 3td-party defendant in that achom ané 1f not; v»hy not‘? TR

-~ 4. What was the exact date of the: judgment in the NY actlon’? e i

W as’ the _}udgnent tlmely appealed by IQS’? if'so, when Was c}aim Of appeal ﬁi&d'?

.6 Has 108 satisfied the judgment against itin the NY actmn‘? DS

ity \Vhatwﬁféfhéfactuai IssuesdecxdedbyﬂleNYCour“? SR L B
- 8 What is 1QS" version of the facts (in essence, what were IQS’ 'de:fenses ta the o

i I() What 1 was. the coniractual relati(}nsm;} belween TP; IQS and M&A" o
- On the facts | am currently aware of; it appears 1QS would like to bnng ghe or mﬁre Of
it vrthe foHowmg claims: fraud, tomous interference; defamatmn_ mdammﬁcatlon

LR conmbutmn restttunom m; urions faksehood, breach'ef coniract, and breach af dutv of -

L :;':underlwncr ccpwlght cjlalms and its facmal clmms abamst’l‘erryn QI‘ how d1d Temm 116}‘?‘ e

- 9 Dld Ten‘yn have an} kmd Gf empl@yment comsraci or mtemshlp confraut Wlth [QS? - : el T T
: QDjr.i 1QS ha\ e ona wﬁ:h GVSU he acted wlder or had to comply Wiﬂi 2

f,;_appears time is- nf{he assmlce Ilefh Liia Vmcemaﬁ toﬁ }’W’lﬂlm} teiephone number B TP i B
' and my contact: mfﬁrmatmn malsﬁposted bﬁlaw Ilook forward to hearmg ﬁ‘om yeu ;;_ O
"i"'regardmgthe abave s L : o D

| Bestregards, :Lﬁ;f_ié_c.-QMe##&tf F R




R

5 nvo;ce submrtted tc -

deuetgpmeh S
i.aw Weathers :

R




AT Birkbeck o

ts, and he agrees
Let's talk soon:

tkem@mdusma%qwcksea rch ol




-AL

From: Mike Meiresonne [mailto: mikem@industrialquicksearch.com]
Sent: Tussday, February 09, 2010 12:45 PM

To: A. J. Birkbeck. '

Subject: re: IQS v, Terryn

Do we want to mention the Thomas case? It may take away any strong position he may have.....I arti suré he now wants
to get rid of the case irregardiess of the hundred grand 1 have spent on it,

Thanks.

Mike Meiresorme
77—.9-5377 eX’E 103

BAMUFALCIGRER BIRRCIDR ¢

Patent Issued 1/27/09 Patent #7,483,872

Original Message - -

From: "A. 1. Birkbeck" <ajbirkbeck@fulerumilaw.coms o
To: "Les Moranit, Esq. [LesMorant@LWR.com]" <LesMora NE@LWR.COM>
Cc: "Mike Meiresonng" <mikem@industrialouicksearch.com>

Date: Tue, § FED.ZDIO 11:56:30 <0500
Subject: IQS v. Terryn

Sy

Seibhamce limos s Michogss Bow Yore:
Les -

As Tmentioned in my call 1o your office this morning, T would like to discuss the Terryn niatter with you later
today, in light of the latest developments. in N ew York. Please give me a call at your earliest convenience.

Cordially,







